
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSE M 8 LY 
THIRTY-FIFTH SESSION 

Official Record5 • 

SPECIAL POLITICAL COMMITTEE 
37th meeting 

held on 
Thursday, 20 November 1980 

at 3 p.m. 
New York 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 37TH MEETING 

Chairmen: Mr. MUBARAZ (Yemen) 

CONTENTS 

AGENDA ITEM 59: QUESTIONS RELATING TO INFORMATION (continued) 

(a) REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON INFORMATION (continued) 

(b) REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) 

(c) REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE UNITED NATIONS EDUCATIONAL, 
SCIENTIFIC AND aJLTURAL ORGANIZATION (continued) 

(d) CO-OPERATION AND ASSISTANCE IN THE APPLICATION AND IMPROVEMENT OF NATIONAL 
INFORMATION AND MASS COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS FOR SOCIAL PROGRESS AND 
DEVELOPMENT: REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE UNITED NATIONS 
EDUCATIONAL, SCIENTIFIC AND CULTURAL ORGANIZATION (continued) 

'This record is subject t · sign·1ture f 0 correcllon. Corrections should be sent under the 
' o a member of the dele t' . . 

of publication 
1 

tl Cl. f ga 1011 concerned wllhm one month of the date 
866 United N ~· lC Pluc of the OffiCial Records Editing Section room A-3550, 
record. a Ions aza (Alcoa Building), and incorporated in' a copy of the 

Corrections will be issued ft h . . 
each Committee. a er t e end of the sesswn, 111 a separate fascicle for 

80-57683 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/SPC/35/SR.37 
10 De>ce,~l-ber 1980 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: SPANISH 

I ••• 



A/SPC/35/SH.37 
English 
Page 2 

AGT:ND/\. ITEll 59: 0,UESTIONS RET~ATING ~~'0 INFORI'11\TION (.£.2I]tinued) 

(a) RI:PORT GF THE COi l1ITTEE ON HTFORJ\I.NriON (continued) 

(b) REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GEN'~RAL (continued) 

(c) HRPO'""l.T OF THE DIRECTOR-GE.i'Tl\RAL OF THE maTED HATI0Nf3 EDUC' A'I'IOHAL, 
:2CIDJTIFIC Acm CUI/IURt\L ORG,A~U!:ATIC,T<J (~::>pt_i:~~u_t.'_2) 

(d) CO-OPERATIOn AHD ASSISTANCE IN THE ~1\PPLIC_I\TIOT! AND IHPI\OVEf1ENT OF i\Tj\'l'IU~·1ftJ 
INFOil!IA'l'IOH J\iD lv.lASS CChi/iU:i:UCATIOH SYST:Gr1S FCR SCCI.!\.1 p;cc~RJ'SS A''JJ DIY?IJil T.'? 
R~POE~c cF 'T~·n:E DIEEC'ICR· GE<D..RAL CF 'l'HE u 'ITID 1u~Trc~s ELUCATICEAL ~ ~_.;cr;''"l'IJic ,•,:, 

CUL'IUBAL CRGiL!IZA~~IO>T (c~?~t~in~~~.u (A/35/21' 362 nnrl Ado .l I 504 illlC"c Corr .l. 

l. Mr. SKOGHO (NonTay) said that C]uestionf3 relating to information touched .t~)0L 
every facet of international relations, and access to information >·ras therefor< 
a political yJroblem Hhich concerned everyone. His Government firmly believecJ 
in the principles of the Universal Declaration of Hu'Tlan Hie:hts, accordine; to ·rl:i c1' 

everyone had the right to freedom of opinion and expression; that right inclulted 
freedom to hold opinions ui thout interference and to seek, r:::cei ve and impart 
information and ideas through any media and regardless of frontiers. HoHever, 
serious imbalances existed betvreen nations and peoples uith regard to their ac<.:c,-::3 
to modern means of communication and information, and in that context the: 
developing countries had put fonrard demands for n. ne>v vrorld information and 
communication order. The JITorvregian Governmcnt recognized that there vras a rr·:·;:;sin? 
need to develop a media structure that >vould meet the elementary demands for 
communication and dissemination of knovrledge and scrve as a basjs for an excL;;:;r 
of information as part of the over-all development strategy. In the deliberct ionc 
at the General Conference of UNESCO, his Government had expressed its 1,-illins:L~S 
to ,ioin in efforts to overcome the current imbalance of the international 
information order by strene;thening the media structure of develoDinr; countd c:·, 

2. In its resolution 34/182, the General Assembly had requested. the Coml<litt~~ ··· 
Information to continue to examine United Nations public information policic<> eE' 
activities, to evaluate and follow up the efforts made and the progres~: achieved tr 
the United Nations system in the field of information and communicatiotjG n.nc1 tc 
promote the establishment of a nevr, more just and more effective vrorld :infon::cttio:; 
and communication order. 'the hest ,,my of dealine; v:i th the :rractic._tl a;c1c1 technicel 
questions relating to that new Horld information order uas throueh tl1c: 
International Proe;ramme for the Development of Communication ( IFDC) establi c:lled 
by UNESCO. Norway, as a member of the nevr Intergovernmentel Council of the 
Proe;ramme, >wuld take an active part in its work on communication que:;tiorl::, c·Tllici 
should be evaluated, discussed and financed in the context or tl'e cc:nc.c:ll 
development strategy. 

3. vThere United Nations information activities and policies >·rere concc:rued, 
his deJt:or:ation vrelcomed the report of the Secretary-Cerwral on the ne·H fellcNsLlr 

I ... 



A/SPC/35/SR.37 
English 
Page 3 

(Mr. Skogrr:o, Nonra:yJ 

rrograll:llle (A/35/603). It also welcomed the establishment of the Planning, 
?rogrammine; and Evaluation Unit within the Department of Public Information and 
;.:ished to stress the importance of a systematic effort to make maximum use of the 
~vailable resources. There was a need for better co-ordination of information 
o:ctivities within the United Nations system and for a common strategy on how to 
present the work of the system to the world community; the Joint United Nations 
Information Committee (JUNIC) had important tasks ahead of it in that respect. 
::is delegation attached c;reat importance to information centres and to the work of 
voluntary organizations in spreading knowledge about issues -vrithin the United 
::ations system and believed that closer co~operation should be established betw·een 
such organizations and the United Nations information centres. 

4. l'lr. NEVES (Portugal) said that, as article 19 of the Universal Declaration of 
HMan Rights indicated, freedom of opinion and expression was a fundamental human 
right; the defence and enjoyment of all other human rights could only be guaranteed 
by that freedom, and any attempt to control the media or to impose restrictions on 
the expression and exchange of opinions or ideas, whether based on ideological or 
rolitical considerations, was therefore unacceptable. The new world information 
order should promote a w·ider and better balanced flow of information among 
different countries and regions of the world, one of its aims being the 
preservation of each nation' s cultural identity. His delegation was encouraged by 
the fact that the principle of freedom of information had been repeatedly upheld, 
as had recently been the case at the General Conference of UNESCO in Belgrade. 
U;JESCO played a major role in the common endeavours to achieve consensus in that 
field, and the International Programme for the Development of Communication (IPDC) 
vas a step towards the achievement of the objectives of the ne1v world information 
order. 

5. In the field of information, his Government attached particular importance to 
bilateral co-operation programmes. Portugal and Mozambique had recently signed a 
l':emorandum on social communications aimed at promoting better knowledge and 
friendship betv1een the peoples of the tvo countries through a more balanced flow 
of information, technical co-operation and assistance in various fields, such as 
journalism training. 

6. The recommendations included in the report of the Committee on Information 
(A/35/21) constituted a useful basis for the continuation of United Nations 
activities in that field. The report referred to the need for simultaneous 
availability of information material in all official languages and stressed the 
use of regional languages; in that connexion, he would like to emphasize the fact 
that Portuguese was, of all the non-official languages of the United Nations, the 
one that vas spoken in the largest number of countries. It vras the official 
language of seven States Hembers of the United Nations, representing 150 million 
People, and of such important regional organizations as OAU and OAS. The 
divulgation of United Nations information in Portuguese therefore deserved 
particular attention. 

T. Hr. DIEZ (Chile) said he was gratified to note that, despite differences of 
opinion, information and communication was no longer being considered from a 
theoretical and abstract standpoint but had become the subject of practical 

I . .. 



A/SPC/35/SH.37 
English 
Page 2 

AG1'":J'lDJ\. ITEIT 59: QUESTIONS RELATHTG rL'O INFORMATION (continued) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

RSPORT OF THE COI1l'1ITTEE CJE 1NFOR!IA'TION (continued) 

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GEN'~RA1 (continued) 

l:EPO'"'(T OF THE DIRECTOR-GBNERA1 OF THf. mriTED HATIOI'm T'TlUC'A'I'IOHJ\1, 
JCIDJTIFIC A1'"D CULT'UPt,JJ ORGrH~ATICH (~<?P..!i.~'?-!-1-:?~) 

(d) CO-OPERATIOn AND ASSISTANCE IN THE APP1IC_I\TIOIT MTD IIIPf\OVEliENT OF i 1J1'l'IONAJ, 
INFOTI!Lti_TIOIT l\_iD l"-i.ASS COIJiJUiHCATIOIT SYSTJ::l'1S FCT\ SCCI!\1 F'~CGR-::'SS A;'ll JJl,ln~JJH :c"I': 
R~POET CF ':IJ:iE DIEEC'ICR GG<I~RA1 CF THE U ii'ITD lJI_TICS ELUCA'I'ICITAL, [-lCT' ,;';'F,·rc Li0 

CU1'IUFUlL ORGJLfiZA'TIO '7 (c_(J:Q_t_in!:!:_:'_c~J (A/35/21, 362 nne' AdCI .. 1 504 0uc~ Corr ,l. (03) 

l. Mr. SKOGTJO (l!onray) said that question~3 relating to information touched )_:.;0n 

every facet of international relations, and access to information ~-ras therefor, 
a political problem ~-rhich concerned everyone. His Government firmly believed 
in the principles of the Universal Declaration of ITu..'nan Rit',hts, according to -,;}:i cl' 
everyone bad the right to freedom of opinion and expression; tllat right inclu(ied 
freedom to hold opinions -vri thout interference and to seel;:, r-::ccei ve and impart 
information and iCI.eas through any media and regardless of frontiers. Hm1ever, 
serious imbalances existed betvreen nations and peoples vith ree;arcl to their ace·=,:~' 
to modern means of communication and information, and in that context the 
developing countries had put fon~ard demands for a ne1-r -vrorld information and 
communication order. The JITorvregian Government recognized that there vras a pF:~;sinz 
need to develop a media structure that 1-rould meet the elementary clemands for 
communication and dissemination of knowledge and serve as a basi fo for an excL<:::l>~c' 
of information as part of the over-all development strategy. In the c1eliberut ion" 
at the General Conference of UNESCO, his Government had expressed its vrillin(;::_::s 
to Join in efforts to overcome the current imbalance of the international 
information order by strene;thening the media structure of develovinr, countd '-':, 

2. In its resolution 34/182, the General Assembly had requested_ the C'omliiitt,,' ,_ .. 
Information to continue to examine United Nations public information policic·~3 c'rcl 
activities, to evaluate and follmr up the efforts made and the progres~: achieved t-y 
the United Nations system in the field of information and communicatiOlJS ~mel_ Lc 
promote the establishment of a nevr, more just and more effective Horld inCon::,,don 
and communication order. 'lhe hest ~my of dealine; vri th the practic;;_tl ::r:1d. technical 
ouestions relating to that ne1-1 world information order \Tas throu;_rh t!1c: 
International Programme for the Development of Cormnunication ( IPDC) estab:Li ::hed 
by UNESCO. Norway, as a member of the ne-vr Intergovernmentol Council of the 
Procramme, Hould take an active part in its Hork en communic:G.tio>l que~;--clor:;;, \·rlllcL 
should be evaluated, discussed and financed in the context of tl1 e gerh:.r-:11 
development strategy. 

3. liJhere United Nations information activities and nolicic~s ver;c. concc:rned, 
his de:J 8p:ation vrelcomed the report of the Secretnry-Uenerul on the nevr fell:JvshiP 

I ... 



A/SPC/35/SR.37 
English 
Page 3 

(Hr. Skogrr:o, Nonray) 

rrogramme (A/35/603). It also welcomed the establishment of the Planning, 
Programming and Evaluation Unit within the Department of Public Information and 
vished to stress the importance of a systematic effort to make maximum use of the 
available resources. There was a need for better co-ordination of information 
activities within the United Nations system and for a common strategy on how to 
:r:resent the work of the system to the -vmrld community; the Joint United Nations 
Information Committee (JUNIC) had important tasks ahead of it in that respect. 
His delegation attached great importance to information centres and to the work of 
voluntary organizations in spreading knowledge about issues -vrithin the United 
lTations system and believed that closer co-operation should be established between 
such organizations and the United Nations information centres. 

4. l'lr. i~EVES (Portugal) said that, as article 19 of the Universal Declaration of 
Human Rights indicated, freedom of opinion and expression was a fundamental human 
right; the defence and enjoyment of all other human rights could only be guaranteed 
by that freedom, and any attempt to control the media or to impose restrictions on 
the expression and exchange of opinions or ideas, vrhether based on ideological or 
Political considerations, vras therefore unacceptable. The new vrorld information 
order should promote a wider and better balanced flow of information among 
different countries and regions of the 1vorld, one of its aims being the 
preservation of each nation's cultural identity. His delegation was encouraged by 
the fact that the principle of freedom of information had been repeatedly upheld, 
as had recently been the case at the General Conference of UNESCO in Belgrade. 
UiqESCO played a major role in the common endeavours to achieve consensus in that 
field, and the International Programme for the Development of Communication (IPDC) 
vms a step towards the achievement of the objectives of the ne>v world information 
order. 

5. In the field of information, his Government attached particular importance to 
bilateral co-operation prograrr~es. Portugal and I~ozambique had recently signed a 
memorandum on social conwunications aimed at promoting better knowledge and 
friendship betvleen the peoples of the two countries through a more balanced flovr 
of information, technical co-operation and assistance in various fields, such as 
journalism training. 

6. 'I'he recorr~endations included in the report of the Committee on Information 
(A/35/21) constituted a useful basis for the continuation of United Nations 
activities in that field. The report referred to the need for simultaneous 
availability of information material in all official languages and stressed the 
use of regional languages; in that connexion, he would like to emphasize the fact 
that Portuguese vras, of all the non-official languages of the United Nations, the 
one that was spoken in the largest number of countries. It was the official 
language of seven States Members of the United Nations, representing 150 million 
people, and of such important regional organizations as OAU and OAS. The 
divulgation of United Nations information in Portuguese therefore deserved 
particular attention. 

7 .. Mr. DIEZ (Chile) said he vras gratified to note that, despite differences of 
Oplnion, information and communication vras no longer being considered from a 
theoretical and abstract standpoint but had become the subject of practical 

I . .. 



A/SPC/35/SR.37 
English 
Page 4 
(Mr. Diez, Chile) 

discussions in the United Nations. Hith regard to the establishment of a new 
world information and communication order, his delegation wished to reiterate that 
the exercise of freedom of opinion, expression and information was an essential 
factor for peaceful coexistence and for friendly relations and co-operation among 
peoples and that access to varied sources of information should be guaranteed. 
Consequently, the study and evaluation of the world information and communication 
order should take into account the applicability at all times of those principles 
and should promote the goal of co-operation with a view to the achievement of more 
just and better balanced structures enabling all States to have access to 
information and communication media. The establishment of balance and greater 
reciprocity in the flow of information must be based on relations of mutual 
understanding. With regard to the responsibility of the information media, his 
delegation fully agreed that the media had definite responsibilities in such 
matters as preserving the identity of each State and promoting friendship and 
co-operation among peoples. However, the primary and basic responsibility of the 
media was a commitment to truth, which could be disseminated only if the 
principles of freedom of expression, opinion and information were fully observed 
and which could not be identified with a commitment to the service of the 
political regime in power. 

8. In its information activities, the United Nations should endeavour in 
particular to promote relations of co-operation and assistance between developing 
and developed countries and to create an awareness of the needs of the developing 
countries, especially with regard to technological means for developing their own 
information structures. Where General Assembly resolution 34/182 was concerned, 
his delegation welcomed the spirit of co-operation and co-ordination which had 
prevailed between UNESCO and the General Assembly. UNESCO had a key role to play 
in providing assistance and training to developing countries, bearing in mind the 
vital influence of communications on the economic, social and cultural development 
of peoples. Whatever arrangements were adopted in connexion with the 
International Programme for the Development of Communication, the Programme should 
promote respect for and enjoyment of the principles of freedom and, at the same 
time, focus on providing States with the assistance and co-operation they needed. 

9. As his delegation had stated on previous occasions, it was essential that the 
activities of the Department of Public Information should be properly evaluated 
and structured, with priority being given to economic issues, particularly the 
establisl~ent of the new international economic order, and to legal questions, 
highlighting the untiring efforts of the Organization in the development of legal 
norms governing relations between States, co-operation and the promotion of 
international peace and security. The low esteem in which the United Nations was 
held by public opinion was due to the mistaken approach taken by the Department of 
Public Information in stressing the more dubious and peripheral political aspects 
of the Organization instead of highlighting the basic aspects of peace-keeping, 
solidarity and mutual assistance among peoples. Priority must also be given to 
such issues as disarmament, decolonization, social development and United Nations 
peace-keeping operations. 

10. The question of the geographical balance of the staff of the Department was 
of particular importance. The representation of nationals of developing countries 

I ... 



A/SPC/35/SR. 3'{ 
English 
Page 5 

(Mr. Diez. Chile) 

should be increased at all levels of decision-making. The question of linguistic 
balance was also important, and the issue of informational material in SJ:anish 
should respond dynamically to the needs of the Spanish-speaking countries. liTher,~ 
the Department's financial resources were concerned, there was a need not only for 
rrore responsible investment of funds but also for an increase in resources, which 
the General Assembly should allocate to the Department in proportion to the 
increase in the totality of United Nations programmes in which DPI was required to 
collaborate. 

11. His delegation endorsed the recommendations of the Ad Hoc \<larking Group 
concerning the use of the most up-to-date and appropriate techniques for the 
production and dissemination of information by the United Nations and looked 
forward to the results of the evaluation of the means already available to the 
Department; :particular attention should be given to the situation with regard to 
radio and television, which provided an important flow of news and information to 
the media in developing countries. The training :programmes for broadcasters and 
journalists should continue to receive support from the Secretariat in order to 
ensure rational and efficient utilization of the fellowships under each :programme. 
His delegation considered the work of the Joint United Nations Information 
Committee to be essential, especially with regard to the :pooling of information 
within the United Nations system and the establishment of a more just and more 
effective world information order in accordance with the relevant resolutions of 
the General Assembly. In that connexion, his delegation agreed with the 
Secretary-General that co-operation and co-ordination within the system were 
essential in order to avoid duplication and facilitate the full and effective 
utilization of the wide range of expertise available in the United Nations system 
and, at the same time, to project a unified image of common goals and objectives. 

12. For those reasons, his delegation supported the work in the field of 
information of the General Assembly and the Committee on Information, of which 
Chile was honoured to be a member. 

13. Ms. RATNAYAKE (Sri Lanka) said that the title of the report of the 
International Commission for the Study of Communication Problems, "Many voices, 
one world", aptly reflected the reality of global interdependence, which 
unfortunately was not universally understood and appreciated. All mankind ><ras 
threatened by an arms race that continued unchecked, economic inequalities had 
reached record levels with little progress towards the restructuring of 
international economic relations, and conflicts continued in a world where 
injustice and imbalance were constantly increasing. The vast progress in science 
and technology and the rapid development of mass communications in the satellite 
age provided an opportunity to promote better understanding of the global 
interdependence among nations and to establish a more just and more effective 
world information and communication order. As the non-aligned countries had 
declared at their fifth summit conference in Colombo, the new information and 
communication order was as vital as the n01 international economic order. 

14. In order to bring about a wider and better balanced spread of information, 
the developing countries would have to achieve greater independence in the field 
of commun~cations .. Th~ Pool of I(on-aligned Ne-vrs AgenciPs and the 
Broadcastlng Organlzatlon of the Non-aligned Countries had made steady progress in 



A/SPC/35/SR.37 
En~slish 
Page 6 

(Hs. Ratnayake, Sri Lanka) 

ti~::1t direction. Sri Lanka was taking steps tovrards the establishment of a 
c<: rr1puterized data bank to serve the needs of developing and other countries, and 
k:b<.l. alE;o taken steps to extend the special telecommunication tariff rates for mass 
media so as to promote a greater volume of nevrs among non-aligned countries. 
However, despite the efforts of non~aligned and developing countries, substantial 
imbalances and inequalities continued in the global corrmunication process; it was 
therefore unfortunate that the call for a ne1-r communication order was the subject 
of polemics. The non-aligned countries did not see the call for accurate, fair 
and balanced reporting as censorship, nor did they see freedom of the press as 
meaning irresponsible licence. 

15. Turning to the United Nations activities in the field of information and 
communication, she drew attention to the need for carefully co-ordinating the iwrk 
of all ·bodies in the United Nations system. With regard to the Department of 
Public Information, she noted that the Department's share of the total regular 
budget had declined by n:ore than half; additional resources should be provided to 
DPI in proportion to the increase in the total programme which it uas required to 
service. Her delegation lvelcomed the establishment of a Planning, Programming and 
Evaluation Unit within the Department. The training programme for journalists 
and broadcasters was a limited one and needed to be expanded in co-ordination with 
other United Nations agencies and prograrrmes. Finally, the role, function and 
organization of United Nations information centres around the world needed to be 
revie-vred carefully, taking into account the views expressed by Member States. 

16. Her delegation commended UNESCO and its Director-General for the major part 
it had played in communication issues and for the assistance it had given to 
developing countries in that field. 

l7. Hr. GABRIEL (Malaysia) said that from 1976 to 1979 his delegation, together 
with the other members of the Association of South~East Asian nations, had 
sponsored resolutions aimed at improving the mass communications systems in the 
developing countries through international co-operation, better access to modern 
corrmunications technology, greater exchanges of information between developed and 
developing countries and the promotion of international peace and understanding. 
In resolution 34/181, adopted by the General Assembly in 1979, the 
Director-General of UNESCO had been asked to study the possibility of establishinG 
an international fund for the development of communications and to pursue his 
efforts to prepare an integrated model plan for co-operation and assistance in 
the field of information and mass communications. Both requests had received 
favourable consideration at the UNESCO General Conference and had been included in 
the international prograrrme which, if fully implemented, could mark the beginning 
of a new international information order. 

18. In regard to the need to co-ordinate the information activities of the 
various organizations of the United Nations system, his delegation considered 
that, despite the great improvement in United Nations information activities, 
there continued to be little understanding by the general public of the 
Organization's work. If the enorn:ous amount of information available was properlY 
disseminated, it would enhance international understanding of and increase public 
confidence in the United Nations. In that respect, the Department of Public 

/ ... 



A/SPC/35/SR.3T 
English 
Page 7 

(Mr. Gabriel, Malaysia) 

lnf'or:.~ation played 11 focal role and, as the resources avilable to it -vrere cles.rly 
iMdequate, he suprorted the recommendation of the Committee on Information t1-u=.t 
its relative c;r01•7th rate should be commensurate with the increase in the 
programmes it vras called upon to undertake. His delegation also supported the 
call by a nwner of delegations for an equitable geographical distribution of the 
personnel of the Department, particularly at the decision·-making level, and for 
linguistic balance in the dissemination of information. 

19. i";r. JCl/\RDER (Bancsladesh) said that in the current age of sophisticated 
informatio~~ technology, the power of the media was enormous and could make a 
fundamental contribution to the establishment of the nev international economic 
order, the strensthening of peace and understanding, and other international 
ob.je~tives. 

20. In the statements of some delec;ations, an attempt had been made to draw a 
sharp distinction bet'.<een ;vthe free flow of ideas 11 and the "responsible flow of' 
ideas 11

, the former representing the concept of private ownership of the 
communication media and the second representing the idea of governmental guidance 
and direction. His delegation thought that the distinction was not as sharp as it 
had been made out to be, much less that it was an nall-good1

; or an 11 all·~bad" 
situation. If the mass media were to help guard the freedom of citizens, they 
must not be under the complete control of government, but at the same time it 
would be cause for concern if they were to fall under the control of poverful 
private interests. Moreover, every Government had the legitimate right to guard 
its people against libel and obscenity, and those developing countries 1-Jhich lvere 
trying to mobilize their people for nation-building and national development 
should have some means of communication with the people. 

21. His delegation regarded the work of the Committee on Information as vital, 
particularly for the developing countries. It also supported the idea of 
providing the Department of Public Information with resources proportionate to the 
over-all supiJort that it was expected to provide for various United Nations 
programmes - and in that connexion it urged the undertaldng of an extensive 
programn~ of public information activities concerning the forthcoming United 
Hations Conference on the Least Developed Countries - and stressed the need for an 
equitable geographical distribution of the personnel of the Department in 
accordance with Article 101 of the United Nations Charter. The Department should 
strengthen its programmes and activities in support of the development of the mass 
mer1ia infrastructure in developing countries. It was also necessary to achieve a 
linguistic balance in the dissemination of information and to promote the use of 
regional languages in information materials. For example, the exclusion of 
Bengali from the languages used by the Asian Unit of the United Nations Radio 
2ervice was hard to understand. His delegation also urged the Department to give 
consideration to the request for the establishment of an information centre at 
Dacca and supported the proposal that the Department should provide on-the-job 
training for broadcasters and journalists from developing countries. 

:?2. In C'Onclusion, he expressed his satisfaction at the outcome of the 
brent,y-first General Conference of UNESCO, particularly the establishment of the 
rntergnvern,:n~;nta1 Proc;ramme for the Development of Communication and the 
Intergovernmental Council of 35 members, of whom Bangladesh was one. 



A/SPC/35/SR. 37 
English 
Page 8 

23. Mr. SHAIIG-IO (Bahrain) said that the information activities of the United 
Nations system should play a leading role in helping the world to become more 
aware of such issues as peace, disarmament, decolonization, human rights, the 
struggle against apartheid and racial discrimination, the establishment of a new 
international economic order, and the development of international relations under 
the rule of law. Nor should the importance be forgotten of the role of the United 
Nations in creating conditions for promoting better understanding among the 
peoples, which made it more than ever necessary that information activities should 
be carried out by a body based on the principle of geographical balance, so that 
it could perform its duties properly. 

24. He expressed his appreciation of the activities of the United Nations 
information system, and mentioned the hopes that should be placed in the 
International Programme for the Development of Communication. He also repeated 
his support for resolution 34/182 which, among other things, called for a balance 
in the use of official languages in information activities, and stressed the need, 
in accordance with the views expressed, to make certain important changes in the 
Department of Public Information, in particular in the radio and television 
services, with a view to enabling the e~uitable participation of personnel from 
various countries, particularly in posts at the hicrer levels, on the basis of 
e~uitable geographical distribution. 

25. The international community, in particular the developing countries, hoped 
for the establishme'ht of a new information order >vhich would ensure a free and 
balanced flow of ideas and a diversity of information sources on the basis of the 
principles that had been agreed on. 

26. In conclusion, he noted that the network of United Nations Information 
Centres would be increasingly important in the 1980s because of activities in 
various fields, such as those connected with the new international economic order 
and the global negotiations, and the possibility of important international 
political events, particularly in Namibia and Palestine. 

27. Mr. DYACHENKO (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that information, 
especially in the United Nations system, should serve to promote peace, 
co-operation and trust among peoples. It had ac~uired greater importance thanks 
to the revolutionary changes and the emergence of new independent countries in 
Asia, Africa and Latin America. Information helped to form public opinion and 
influenced the political decision-making process, and had thus come to occupy an 
important position in world politics; but the opportunities it offered could be 
used as much to contribute to human understanding and resolving national or world 
problems as they could to creating distrust and hatred among peoples. 

28. In 1978 the twentieth General Conference of UNESCO had adopted the 
Declaration on Fundamental Principles concerning the Contribution of the Mass 
Media to Strengthening Peace and International Understanding, to the Promotion of 
Human Rights and to Countering Racialism, Apartheid and Incitement to 1-Tar. That 
was the first international document to set forth the general principles of the 
use of information; but its implementation came up against the opposition of the 
forces which used world information as a means to prevent positive changes from I 
taking place in the world or to interfere in the internal affairs of other StateS· 

I ... 



A/SPC/35/SR.37 
English 
Page 9 

(Mr. Dyachenko, Ukrainian SSR) 

Those enemies of international co-operation, among >rhich the Voice of America, 
Radio Free Euro~e and the BBC played an important role, had recently launched 
their ~sychologlca~ warfare against the socialist countries. In the world today 
tw~ thlrds of all lnformation in non-socialist countries was controlled by 
Un1ted States monopolies; four fifths of all periodicals and nine tenths of radio 
station~ of world importance were likewise controlled by \vestern imperialist 
monopolles, as w·ere 80 per cent of television programmes and 60 per cent of films. 
Those media were directed at the developing countries constituting two thirds of 
the world population, lvhich amounted to information imperialism. The content of 
the information sent to third-world countries was tendentious, subjective, showed 
oruy one partial aspect of the reality of the developing countries and merely 
reflected the interests of the capitalist countries. 

29. Most of the countries of Asia, Africa and Latin America had freed themselves 
from imperialism but had no way of knowing what was happening in the world and ln 
their own countries. The dependence of information was a logical result of 
economic dependence. The transnational corporations were attempting in those 
countries to promote bourgeois concepts of development and to misrepresent the 
progressive economic and social changes in certain countries, so that the 
information provided did not serve the ideals of peace and social progress but 
the interests of the monopolies. Its most important features were slander, 
military propaganda and violence, anti-humanitarian films and literature, and 
silence on the subject of the 1-lestern world 1 s own problems. Paragraph 26 of the 
report of the Committee on Information (A/35/21) said that the new world 
information and communication order "should be understood as a just means of 
~reeing developing countries from their current dependence with respect to 
lnfrastructure, know-how and technology relating to information techni~ues, and 
enabling them to gain complete mastery of those techniques". The only way to 
achieve that was to establish new independent media in thP new States which l·rould 
lPad to th<" establishment of the new inforn:.ation order and fino.lly of the new 
international economic order. 

30. The progress of science and technology had produced revolutionary changes in 
the media, and it was high time for every country to be able to make full and 
sovereign use of those benefits of civilization. His delegation fully understood 
the needs and aspirations of the developing countries to eliminate information 
imperialism, improve national communication media and establish a new world 
information order which should be based on the struggle for national sovereignty 
in that area and the elimination of the vestiges of colonialism and imperialism in 
the spiritual life of their peoples. It was necessary to help develop the 
national information systems of those countries by strengthening their material 
resources and offering them political, economic, soci~l and c~ltural ass~stance. 
The principles which had been proclaimed as norms of lnternatlonal relatlons 
should be applied to the communications media, and the international exchange of 
information should be brought into line with the provisions of the Charter, the 
Final Act of Helsinki, and the UNESCO Declaration on Mass Medi~. ~e policy of 
the countries of the socialist community promoted the democratlzatlon of the 
information order throughout the world, and the. interaction b7t1ve:n the so:ialist 
countries and the developing countries in the fleld of communlcatlons, as ln other 

I . .. 



A/SPC/35/SR.37 
English 
Page 10 

(Mr. Dyachenko, Ul<;:rainian SSR) 

fields, was a model of co-operation on an (:oua l footinp:. The funct.ions of 
information in the modern liTOrld placed nev dPn'amls on tLe inforJY1at ton act:iv lties 
of the United Hat ions vlhich should contribute by every possi bl C' mcF1ns to 
achieving the objectives of the Organization. 

31. His delegation had observed that there had recently been an improvement in 
the activities of the Department of Public Information, but at the same time 
considered it necessary to point out that United Nations publications st.ill did 
not accurately reflect the fundamental problems before the General Asseml)ly :- the 
Security Council, the Economic and Social Council and otber socio·~rolitical, legal 
and economic bodies of the United Nations system. As in the past, there 1-m.s still 
a lack of balance in the approach to such im~ortant United Nations functions as 
strengthening international peace and seccrrity, halting the armaments race, 
disarmament, decolonization and the struggle against aTJartheid and racial 
discrimination which should be the centre of the Department's attention at all 
times. His delegation would like to see the Department participating more 
extensively in those activities and projecting a more complete and multifaceted 
picture of the United Nations, among other reasons in order to counter the 
distorted information concerning the United Nations put out by certain 
publications. 

32. His delegation supported the justified requests addressed to the Department 
of Public Information concerning the necessity of establishing better 
co-ordination, exercising moderation in its expenditures and increasing iLs 
effectiveness. In its view increasing the volume and improving the quality of 
the Department 1 s i·rork vrould be feasible without new budgetary allocations if the 
funds which it already had available were to be distributed more effectively and 
unnecessary programmes eliminated or reduced. It i-TaS regrettable that many of 
the recommendations in the report of the Committee on Information failed to take 
into account the onerous financial implications vrhich they would entail. 

33. Jvlr. AL-BONIN (Qatar) said that it was of primary importance to uphold the 
principle of freedom 1rhen establishing the ne'>r 1mrld information and communicatio:J 
order and that no measure adopted in that connexion should violate that 
fundamental principle, otherwise the defects of the present order would be 
aggravated. On the other hand, the principle of national sovereignty had to be 
reinforced in the area of information by curtailing the activities of the 
information agencies of the developed countries, especially transnational 
agencies, and by providing the necessary technical expertise for the developing 
countries to be able to make proper use of modern technology. 

34. In order to become independent in the field of communications and to prorrote 
international peace and security while confronting colonialist campaigns, each 
country or group of countries should seek to establish its own information 
programmes. In that connexion mention should be n:ade of the experimental project 
being undertaken by a group of Arab countries, an:ong them Q,atar, 1dth ree;ard to 
the Fifth Conference of Ministers of Information of Arab Countries which had 
decided, inter alia, to establish a permanent secretariat of the Conference and 
had urged the news agencies of the Gulf countries to make every effort to achicre 

; ... 



A/SPC/35/SR.37 
English 
Page ll 

(IIlr. Al~Eonin, Qatar_) 

independence in the field of information. Those countries w·ere about to launch a 
satellite to promote the interaction of radio and television services. 

35. Hith regard to the activities of the Department of Public Information, his 
delegation believed that the principle of equitable geographical distribution and 
of linguistic balance, which should govern United Nations information activities 
in general, should be observed. Greater attention should be paid to the 
Iiiddle East, and co~operation should be established '..rith local organizations in 
order to promote the Organization 1 s information activities. Lilcewise, it vould be 
u;eessary to expand the Arabic services of the Department of Public Information 
and to recruit greater numbers of qualified staff to -vmrk in news dissemination. 

36. His delegation denounced Zionist information practices, which ran counter to 
the world order that the United Nations intended to establish in that field. The 
Zionist entity engaged in the dissemination of racist ideas and principles, while 
at the same time trying to control news in the Arabic-language newspapers in the 
area under its authority, and terrorizing the population. The international 
community should exert pressure on the oppressor authority to make it allow 
freedom of expression to the peoples under its domination. 

37. It uas to be hoped that efforts to establish a new world information and 
communication order >muld make it possible to remedy the current shortcomings and 
enhance knmv-ledge of world events, thereby contributing to correcting or 
eliminating the arlverse political and economic consequences of the prevailing 
situation in the ~phere of information. 

38. Hiss FRANK (Netherlands) said that, although the views of the European 
Economic Community on questions relating to information had already been conveyed 
in general terms to the Committee, her delegation believed that it would be 
useful to make a few comments on the item. \vithout wishing in any way to enter 
into polemics, she had, first and foremost, to reiterate the supreme importance 
which her Government attached to the principle of freedom of information and of 
expression, as a human right. Since 1946 the United Nations had defended freedom 
of information and had consistently emphasized its importance. In 1948 the right 
to freedom of opinion and expression had been explicitly provided for in 
article 19 of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights. In 1966 that right had 
been reiterated and elaborated upon in article 19 of the International Covenant 
on Civil and Political Rights, and had also been reaffirmed in the 1950 European 
Convention on the Protection of Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms signed at 
Rome. Her Government believed that the free flow of information was essential, 
since freedom to form and express opinions was not only of importance for the 
development of the individual, but was also a fundamental pre-condition for the 
functioning of derrocracy. Her delegation had noted with great interest that 
various delegations from developing countries had also defended that point of view 
at the most recent session of the Committee on Information. The second 
fundamental principle, namely that there should be a balanced flow of information, 
>ms related to the free flmr of information, since it had to be understood that 
the notion of "balancei! presupposed the -yridest and rr.ost diversified possible 
information; in that respect, it was incumbent upon Governments to create 
propitious conditions for freedom of information. In the opinion of her 

/ ... 



A/SPC/35/SR. 37 
English 
Page 12 

(Miss Frank, Netherlands) 

Government, the flow of information should be better balanced internationally. 
The balance could be redressed by furnishing the developing countries with 
technical and financial assistance so that they could establish their own 
infrastructure in that field. It was inadmissible that aspirations to a new, rrore 
balanced international situation should entail any restriction of the freedom of 
information and communication. 

39. Her delegation, as a member of the Committee on Information, was well aware 
of the enormous task which fell to the Department of Public Information, and 
would endeavour to make a constructive contribution to the future work of that 
Committee. Given the numerous activities of the United Nations and the countless 
requests of the General Assembly and, on the other hand, current budgetary 
constraints, the Department should exercise some choice so that neither the 
quality of its publications nor the effectiveness of its other information 
activities would be adversely affected. It 1vas to be hoped that at its 
forthcoming sessions the Committee on Information would be able to draw up more 
explicit recommendations and establish an order of priority for the activities of 
the Department. 

40. Her delegation followed with interest the work of the Division for Economic 
and Social Information. It had a very high opinion of the periodical 
Development Forum; in that connexion, she drew attention to paragraphs 49 to 51 of 
the report of the Secretary-General contained in document A/35/504. She also 
stressed the importance of the work of the Joint United Nations Information 
Committee (JUNIC), a subsidiary body of the Administrative Committee on 
Co-ordination (ACC). It was to be hoped that JUIUC could continue fulfilling its 
interagency co-ordination function, without prejudice to the fundamental role of 
UNESCO in the field of information and communication, and that any needless 
duplication in the United Nations system would te avoided. 

41. With reference to the twenty-first session of the General Conference of 
UNESCO, she expressed her delegation's satisfaction at the adoption by consensus 
of the resolution establishing the International Programme for the Development of 
Communication (IPDC), her country being a member of the Intergovernmental Council· 
As for the resolution adopted at the same session on the conclusions of tte 
International Commission for the Study of Communication Problems, her d.elegation 
was pleased that stress had been laid in that resolution on the need to guarantee 
freedom of expression and of opinion, as well as freedom of the press and of 
information. 

42. Mr. HOUNGAVOU (Benin) said that it was by no means redundant to recall 
certain points which were particularly illustrative of the current situation in 
the sphere of information and communication. He referred principally to its total 
monopoly by certain economic powers and by international imperialism, and the waY 
in which news was manipulated by the selection of items and content to be used 
as a weapon against the social progress of peoples. By such means it was . 
possible, under the guise of freedom of information, to befog international pu~llc 
opinion with nevs which served the propaganda purposes of the vrestern news medla 

I ... 



A/SPC/35/SR.37 
English 
Page 13 

(Mr. Houngavou, Benin) 

and transnational bodies. It was obvious that that situation could uot ccr:tinue 
without provoking a reaction from nations all over the world, and particularly ~n 
the third world, and the demand for acceptable, just and equitable changes. 

43. Various recent General Assembly resolutions had emphasized the need 
thoroughly to reform the United Nations information system, and to define and 
promote a new world information order. The Committee on Information had studied 
those matters systematically, and in its reports had made recommendations to ivhich 
his country attached supreme importance, especially where they concerned those 
specific aspects to ivhich the Department of Public Information should devote 
special attention, namely the liberation of southern Africa from South African 
colonialism and apartheid, the adverse consequences of Israel's Zionist policy of 
occupation and aggression, and the daily struggle being ;.raged by peoples against 
foreign domination, particularly in Africa. 

44. In view of the serious geographical imbalance which was a feature of the 
recruitment and distribution of staff of the Department of Public Information, the 
Committee on Information had also explicitly recommended that the Secretary-General 
should increase the number of staff members from developing countries, especially 
from Africa. His delegation called for the rapid implementation of that 
recommendation. Another important recommendation of the Committee concerned 
linguistic balance in the dissemination of information by the United Nations 
system through publications, radio and television. That linguistic imbalance was 
harmful, and impeded the work of delegations of Member States. 

45. There was a need to make proper use of modern means of mass communication, 
n~rrcly radio and television, in order to achieve the goals set by United Nations 
decisions and resolutions. The Committee on Information and the Secretary-General 
should devote special attention to the question of short-wave and frequency 
modulation broadcasts, as well as to the establishment of a United Nations 
television station at Geneva. In the meantime, it was necessary to intensify 
co-operation between the United Nations and African stations transmitting on 
short wave to southern Africa. News should also be disseminated in the heart of 
Europe, from Geneva, and for that purpose terms should be negotiated with 
government authorities for the use of frequencies already allocated to the United 
Nations. The programmes should reflect all the matters considered at United 
Nations Headquarters. The training of journalists and radio and television 
broadcasters was basic in assisting third-world liberation, development and 
independence. In its own particular sphere UNESCO had already introduced an 
interesting training programme for journalists and radio and television 
broadcasters from developing countries. The programme proposed by the 
Secretary-General in document A/35/504 was a minimum one which would have to be 
expanded considerably. In order to perform all those tasks, it was necessary to 
co-ordinate information activities within both the Secretariat and the United 
Nations system as a whole. Apart from the technical aspects, the need to ensure 
equitable geographical representation should be reiterated, so that the 
representation of a range of opinions would be guaranteed in the various planning, 
programming and evaluation teams and groups, thereby ensuring political balance 
within the Organization. 

I . .. 



A/SPC/35/SR.37 
English 
Page 11~ 

(Mr. Houngavou, Benin) 

46. The decolonization of information encompassed a much broader field, namely 
the structuring of a new world information order. That was the only way to put an 
end to the existing monopolies and their adverse conse~uences. Considerable 
progress had already been made in that direction, but much remained to be done; it 
was essential that everyone should participate in the task. 

47. Mrs. KEKEH (Togo), referring first of all to the need to strengthen the role 
of the Department of Public Information, said that her delegation endorsed the 
action proposed in that connexion by the Ad Hoc Harking Group of the Committee on 
Information. The Department should give the widest possible publicity to United 
Nations activities, above all in the areas of international peace and security, 
economic and social development, the establishment of the new international 
economic order, and disarmament, and it must have sufficient resources for that 
purpose. The strengthening of the Department's functions and resources would 
enable it to play a more important role in the establishment of a new, more just 
and more effective world information order, which was an essential complement to 
the new international economic order. 

48. The chief goal of that new information order was to put an end to the great 
ine~uality between the third world and the developed countries in the field of 
communications media, infrastructure and access to information. Freedom of the 
press and democratization of information in all regions of the world w·ere very 
important elements of the new world information order, and in that context it was 
essential that the news agencies of the industrialized countries should cease 
projecting an absurd and tendentious image of the third world. The twenty-first 
session of the General Conference of UNESCO, held recently at Belgrade, had 
without doubt constituted an important milestone on the way towards the new world 
information order. 

49. vJith regard to the problem of the training of third~1vorld journalists and 
broadcasting and television personnel, there was a need for co-operation in that 
field between the Department of Information and UNESCO, as well as other organs 
of the United Nations system concerned with training. Lastly, her delegation 
attached great importance to observance of the principle of e~uitable geographical 
distribution in connexion with the recruitment of the staff of the Department of 
Public Information. It was to be hoped that appropriate action would be taken to 
increase the number of staff members from developing countries and to give them 
access to high--level posts. 

50. Mrs. REYES (Colombia) said that communication was a basic re~uirement for 
mankind and for life in society, and that the United Nations was fundamentally a 
centre of communication where dialogue brought the peoples of the world closer 
together. It was also necessary to recognize the fundamental fact that 
information was a power factor closely linked to economic development, since 
growth of communications, improvement of communications and information flows had 
a direct impact on the development and progress of the peoples of the world. It 
would be appropriate for the United Nations to establish an international 
communication policy. 



A/SPC/35/SR.3'7 
English 
Page 15 

(Hrs. Reyes, Colombia) 

51. Freedom of expression was a response to a natural need of manldnd that 
0redated established private or public norms: freedom of information, vhich was 
one of the pillars of democracy, was derived from it. Colombia \·laS a country 
that prided itself on being free and on respecting the principles of a sound 
democracy; her Government had always respected freedom of the press, and citizens 1 

vie\rs were E:'xpressed in the press without fear of coercion or punishment. 

52. The topic of freedom of expression led on to that of the new world 
information and communication order, which was in turn closely linked to the new 
international economic order. In the twentieth century rapid progress in 
communications technology and the avalanche of information were double-edged 
\/Capons, since communications media -vrere an instrument of mankind that could be 
used for mankind's benefit or for its destruction, and either to liberate or to 
Op1)ress the peoples of the world. Totalitarian systems controlled information as 
an element of their povTer, just as the capitalist monopolies of the developed 
countries did; that situation worked to the detriment of the developing countries, 
which did not have the financial resources to acauire costly communications 
technology. Her delegation supported all action taken by the United Nations to 
protect developing countries from information monopolies and a sensationalist 
pre:s, which distorted the image of countries and their Governments in order to 
create tensions and exert pressures that were politically and economically 
ad.vantngeous to the great Powers. It was essential to correct that unjust 
imbalance in the flo-vr of, and access to, information, and the United Nations 
should promote the establishment of a new world information and communication 
order in which the power that communications represented was distributed evenly; 
a two-1-1ay flow of information was encouraged and the cultural monopoly and the 
intellectual colonization of developing peoples were abolished. 

53· Hith regard to the activities of the Department of Public Information, which 
should be aimed at promoting the goals of the United Nations, her delegation had 
noted ~>lith concern that in many instances dissemination of information became 
a platform for certain officials, which distorted the Organization's image and was 
of no benefit whatsoever to it. Hith regard to the Department 1 s staff, the 
principle of balanced geographical participation should be respected more in DPI 
th:.m in any other sector of the United Nations, in view of the vital importance 
of its functions; her delegation therefore fully supported the recommendation 
made by the Ad Hoc \•larking Group of the Committee on Information that immediate 
action should b-;-taken in that respect. 

54. Progress in communications technology was so rapid that communications policies 
could not l~ef'P DECC. EvPn thouc:h the Orc:anization had bf'c>n in 0xistencC' for 
::s yeqr~;, it v<U.=> only tvro years since th0 unih.'d Hations had drawn up a policy in 
t:mt ar,·a. That f[tCt, together vrith th•' Organization 1 s bureaucratic slowness, meant 
that it l:ad not been possible to modernize United Nations equipment to the 
Hcc·css:.n·y extent. rrhe United Nations must use all modern means or run the risk of 
·u<:coming isolated. Her delegation endorsed any programme involving greater use of 
television, such as the Horld Chronicle for the United States and Canada, and 
requested tha.t the Latin American countries should also have television programmes 
in [:r;:.:.nish~ it also endorsed the recommendation made by the Ad Hoc Harking Group 



A/SPC/35/SR.37 
English 
Page 16 

(Mrs. Reyes, Colombia) 

that the Radio Service of the Department of Public Information should be expanded. 
Moreover, her delegation considered it essential to promote a policy of facilitating 
contact between the representatives of Member States and journalists and to ensure 
that the information material produced by the United Nations actually reached those 
for whom it was intended, especially the developing countries. It was also 
necessary to implement the recommendation put forward in the Ad Hoc Working Group 
by the French delegation that arrangements should be made with newspapers in various 
countries for publication of a joint QUarterly supplement (world press supplement), 
in which research work, policies, social questions or documents of general interest 
for the international corr~unity would be disseminated. In the case of the Latin 
American countries, that idea could be realized through the Inter-American Press 
Association. 

The meeting rose at 6.10 p.m. 




